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General Disclosures
For the three months ended 30 June 2015

| Reporting Directive
This Disclosure Statement of the Bank as at and for the three month period ended 30 lune 2025 has
been prepared under the Registered Bank Disclosure Statements (New Zealand Incorparated
Registered Banks) Order 2014 (as amended).

2 Registered Bank
Mame: Bank of India (New Zealand) Limitad
Address: 10 Manukaw Road
Epsom
Auckland 1023

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited (the "Bank") was incorporated on g October 2008, it became a
registered bank on 31 March 2011

For the purposes of the Registered Bank Disclosure Statements (New Zealand Incorporated Registerad
Banks} Order 2014, (a5 amended), the Bank is currently the only entity within the Registered Bank's
Banking Group in New Zealand and accordingly the term “Bank” has the same meaning as the Bank's
Banking Grougp throughaut this Disclosure Statement.

3 Ultimate Parent Bank and Ultimate Halding Company
Mame: Bank of India
Address: Star House C-5, G Block
Bandra Kurla Complex
Post Box Ne. Bigg
Bandra (East)
Mumbai sooog
India

The abligations of the Bank are guaranteed by its ultimate parent, Bank of India (refer to section 6
below for further details on the guarantee arrangement).

There are no known regulations, legislation or other restrictions of a legally enforceable nature which
may matetially inhibit the legal ability of Bank of India to provide material financial support to Bank of
India (New Zealand) Limited.

& Interests in 5% or more of voting securities of registered bank
Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited is 100% owned by Bank of India. Therefore Bank of Ingia has the
ability to directly appoint 200% of the board of directors of Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited.

5 Priority of creditors’ claims
As at 3o June 2ms, all creditors of the Bank have equal priority of claims over the Bank's assets in the
event that the Bank is liquidated or ceases to trade

Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited



General Disclosures
For the three months ended 30 June 2015

6 Guarantee Arrangements
The obligations of Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited are guaranteed under & deed of quarantee
dated 14 January 2011 given by its ultimate parent bank, Bank of India, In favour of the creditors of
Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited ("the Guarantes”) .

Copies of the Guarantee are attached as Appendix 3,

The name and address for service of the Guarantar is:
Bank of India, Star House, C-5, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Post Box No.823s, Bandra (East),
Mumbai socosgs, India,

Bank of India is the Bank's ultimate parent and ultimate helding company. Bank of India is not a
member of the Banking Group.

Details of the capital adequacy for the Bank of India as at 32 March 2015 are as follows:

Capital 38g,980,000,000 INR
Capital(Risk Weighted Exposures (%) w72 %

The Bank of India has the fallowing eredit rating with respect to its long term senior unsecured
obligations payable In any country or currency including cbligations payable in New Zealand In New
Zealznd dollars:

Rating Agency: Standard & Poor's
Current Credit Rating: BBB- {StablefA-3

On 2g September 2014, Standard & Poor's has revised the outlooks on the long term counterparty
credit ratings on the Bank of india from BBB- (negative) to BBB- (stable)

Descriptions of credit rating scales are contained in Appendix 1

Detalls of Guaranteed Obligations

Bank of India uncenditionally quarantees for the benefit of each creditor the due and punctual payment
by Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited of each and every obligation (whether at stated maturity, upon
acceleration or otherwise) now or hereafter owing or to become owing by Bank of India (New Zealand)

Limited to the creditar during the term of the guarantee,

There are no limits on the amount of the ohligations guaranteed under the Guarantes. There are no
material conditions applicable to the Guarantee other than non-perfarmance by the principal obligor.

There are no material legislative or regulatory restrictions in India which would have the effect of
subardinating the clairms under the Guarantes of afy of the creditors of Bank of India (New Zealand)
Limited on the assets of the guarantor, to other claims on the guarantor, in a winding up of that
guarantor,

The deed of guarantee does not have an expiry date

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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General Disclosures
For the three months ended 30 June 2015

(3 Guarantee Arrangements {continued)

Material Cross Guarantees
There are no material cross guarantees;

7 Directors

There {s no change in the canstitution of the Board of Directors since the last balance sheet dated 31

March 2015,

At present, the Bank has the following directors:

- Rabindran Rabin Sockalingam, Chairman and Independent Director (appointed on 31 May 2013)

- Sanjaya Gaur, Independent Director (appointed on 33 May 2013)
Sameer Handa, Independent Director (appointed on 2z July 2o13)

- Anantharaman Sankara Narayanan Radhamangalam, Director (appointed on 15 August 2013
Ranjitkurmar Amarendra Jha, Managing Director (appainted an 13 Decemnber 2013)
Judith Ann Whiteman, Independent Director (appointed on 4 March 2o14)

Communications to the directors should be addressed to:
10 Manwkau Road, Epsom, Auckland 1023, New Zealand

Sanjaya Gaur, Sameer Handa, Rabindran Rabin Sockalingam and Judith Ann Whiteman are
intdependent directars who are not employees of the Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited or of any
other entity able to control or significantly influence the Bank. The Chairman of the Board is therefore
independent. Sanjaya Gaur, Samear Handa, Rabindran Rabin Sockalingam and Judith Ann Whiteman
are residents in Mew Zealand.

Ranjitkumar Amarendra Jha, Managing Director is resident in New Zealand.

Anantharman Sankara Marayanan Radhamangalam, Director, is resident in India.

The directors, thewr immediate relatives and close business associates have not entered into any
transactions with the Bank or any member of the Banking Group which either have been entered into
on terms other than those under the ordinary course of business of the Bank, or which could otherwise
be reasonably likely to influence materially the exercise of that directors duties.

The Board Audlt Committee consists of three directors of which two are indepandent.

The chairman of the Board Audit Committee is Ms. Judith Ann Whiteman, The other members of the
Board Audit Committee are Mr. Rabindran Rabin Sockalingam and Mr.Anantharaman Sankara
Marayanan Radhamangalam.

The Bank’s code of conduct states: Members of core management are expected to devote their tatal
attention to the business interests of the Bank. They are prohibited from engaging in any activity that
interferes with thair performance or responsibilities to the Bank or otherwise |s in conflict witior
prejudicial to the Bank, If any member of the core management considers Investing in securities issued
by the Bank's customers, suppliers or competitors they should ensure that these |rvestments do not
compromise thejr responsibilities to the Bank. Many facters including the size and nature of the
investment; their ability to influence the Bank’s decisiens; their access to confidential Information of
the Bank or any other entity, and the nature of the relationship between the Bank and the counterparty
should be considered in determining whether s canflict exists. Additionally they shauld disclose to the
Bank any interest which they have which may conflict with the business of the Bank. As a general rule,
the members of the core management should avoid conducting the Bank's business with & relative or
any other entity in which the relative is associated in any significant rale. If such a related party
transaction is unavoidable, they must fully disclose the nature of the transaction to the apprapriate

Any dealings with a related party must be conducted in such a way that no preferential treatment is
given to that party. In the case of any other transaction or situation giving rise to conflicts of interests,
the appropriate authority should, after due deliberations, decide on its impact,

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Auditor

KPMG

18 Viaduct Harbour Avenue

P O.Box 1584 Shortland Street
Auckland 2140

Mew Zealand

Conditions of Registration

Effective 1 Novermber 2014, the Reserve Bank of New Zealand [RBNZ) issued revised conditians of
registration for the bank. The conditions of reqgistration has been amended to incorporate the chan ges
that are included in the set of coinditions of registrations and the summary Update to "Connected
Exposures Folicy” (B58) and "Framework for Resitrictions on High-LVR Residential Mortgage
Lending"(B51g), A copy of the full revised conditions of registration effective on or after 15t Navember
2014 can be found in Appendix 2.

The Bank has complied with all conditions of registration over the accounting period.

Pending Proceedings or Arbitration

As at 30 lune 2015, there is one pending claim which has gone through mediation and not certain
whether it will go to arbitration; hawever the matter is not likely to have a material impact on the Bank,
No other legal proceedings or arbitration concerning any member of the Bank in New Zealand or
elsewhere exist that mav have a material effect on the Bank.

Credit Ratings
Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited has the following general credit rating applicable to its long term
senior unsecured obligations payable in Mew Zealand n New Zealand dollars.

Rating Agency: Standard and Poor's
Current Crediting Rating: BBE-/Stable A-3

On 29 September 2014, Standard & Poor's has revised the outiooks on the long term counterparty
credit ratings on the Bank of india from BBB- (negative) to BEB- (stablej

Descriptions of credit rating scales are contained in Appendix 1,

Other material matters
There are no ather material matters relating to the business or affairs of the Bank that are not disclosed
in this Disclosure Statement.

Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited
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Director's Statement
For the Quarter ended 30 June 2015
Each director of the Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited, believes, after due enquiry, that as at the date on
which this Disclosure Statement is signed;
* The Disclosure Statement is not false or misleading; and
* The Disclosure Statement contains all information that is required by the Registered Bank
Disclosure Statements (Mew Zealand Incorporated Registered Banks) Order 2014 (as amended).

Furthermore, each director believes, after due enquiry, that over the period ended 30 June 2015

= The Bank has complied with all conditians of registration that applied during the year;

» Credit exposure to connected persons were not contrary to the Interests of the Bank's Banking
Group; and

« The Bank had systems in place to monitar and control adequately the material risks of the Bank’s
Banking Group including credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, currency risk,
equity risk, liquidity risk, operational risk and other business risks, and that those systems were
being properly applied.

Signed by Ranjitkumar A_Jha as director and responsible person on behalf of all the directors:
(The directors of the Bank were Ranjitkurnar Amarendra lha, Sanjaya Singh Gaur, Sameer Handa, Rabin
Sockalingam Rabindran, Anantharaman Sankara Narayanan Radhamangalam, ludith Ann Whiteman)

lo— /7"

Ranjitkumar A.Jha
Managing Director
a7th August,z015

5 Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the three months ended 30 June 2015

| Interest income
Interest expense
|Net interest income

|Other incoma
‘Total operating income

! Operating expenses
| Impairment losses on loans and advances
F thefore income tax

'Taxation expense
|NetProfit after tax
|Other Comprehensive income
| Total comprehensive income

Statement of Changes in Equity
Forthe three months ended 30 June 2015

‘Balanceasat 1 April 2024
Total comprehensive Incorme for the period
|Balance as at 30 June 2014

Balance as at 1 April 2014
| Total cornprehensive income for the year
Balance as at 32 March 2015 (Audited)

‘Balance as at 1 April 2015
| Tetal comprehensive income for the period
;Balance as at 3o June 2015

(Unaudited)

30.06.2015
Mote

2 1,198

{370)
828

3 133
g6a

4 (674)

15 (5
282

B (7g)
203

203

Share Capital
S000
50,000

50,000
50, 000
50,000

50,000

poLoss

$000°

(Audited)
ron e year enaey

31.03.2015
$000

4,158

{972)
3,286

358
3,564

{2,656)
(23)
865

(247)
618

st

Retained Earnings 3
5000

939
128

1,067

935
618

1,557

1,557
203

1,760

{(Unaud ite{i]}

30.06.2014
s000

924
{_1&:}_'
Tialy |

T
816

(Bz25)|
{11) |
a8

(52).
128

128/

 Total|
5000
50,939
uE:
51,067

50,939
628
53,557

51,557
203

The accompanying notes on pages 10 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements and should be read in conjunction with

the financial statements.

-

Bank of indiz {New Zealand) Limited



+ Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2015

\ASSETS
1Cash
| Due fram other financial institutions
iEaIancE due from related parties
|LLoans and advances
jGST Refundable
| Other assets
;'Eurrent tax assets
| Property and equipment
,;‘:Deferred tax assets
i assets
Total Interest Eaming and Discount Bearing Assets

§ LIABILITES
|Balance due to related parties
| Depasits and other barrowlings
|Other liabilities
! Current tax liabllity
‘Total liabilities

|NET ASSETS

EQUITY

|Share capital

| Retained eamings

| Total shareholder's equity

T+ 'interest and Discount Bearing Liabilities

Note

11

iz

{Unaudited)
30.06.2005

s000

8z
1g,218
3,889
63,440
26

328

1,116
85
BB,184
86,525

23,290
12,659
&47

28
36,424

51,760

50,000

1,760
-51,_}'50
34,888

(Audited)

rOr TNe year enoed
31.03.2015
$000

105
18390

3,549
62,240

335

1,040

Bg
85,743
84,3261

21,446
12,263
348
129
34,186

51,557

S0, 000

3,557
53,557
32,593

(Unaudited)
30.06.2014
$o00

|
FE
14,484
3,007
52,865
313
5
1,137
1A .
70,942 |
69,077

12,832
6,B16
227

19,875

51,067

5o, 000
1,067
51,067 I
18,076

Mo financial assets presented in the statement of financial position have been pledged as collateral for liabilities or contingent

[iabilities.

Signed for and on behalf of the board of directors

L—7

The board of directors of Bank of india {New Zealand) Limited authorised these financial statements far issue on 17th August, 2015,

The accompanying notes on pages 20 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the

financial statements.

Bank of Indla (New Zealand) Limited
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the three months ended 30 June 2015

|Cash flows from operating activities
|Interest received
Fees and other income

¢ | Operating expenses paid

|GST refund received
Interest paid
: Income tax paid
|Increase in advances to customers
Net proceeds from related parties
(({Decrease)/increase in deposits from customers
N-* -ash flow from operating activities

| Cash flows from investing activities

[lincrease)/Decrease in balances with other financial institutions

|Purchase of property and equipment
|Net cash flow from investing activities
|
\Cash flows from financing activities
i Proceeds from lssuance of shares
'ﬂ{ Payment to)/proceeds from to related parties
‘Net cash flow used in finan cing activities

. Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents
>

{Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
|Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

iCash and cash eguivalent is made up of:
iCash

iC seposits

Total cash and cash equivalents

(Unaudited)

30.06.2015

Mote 5000

1,151

ag
(750)

7
(122)

{181)

{2,208)

1,504

396

13 910

{3,000)
{(108)
(3,205)

(2,295)

Loy 4495
12,300

7 82
10 iz, 218
12,300

(Aaudited) (Unaudited)

31.03.2015
000

4134
323
(2,486)
Eo
(924)
{152}
{13,695)
8,887
6,140
2,303

500
{13)
L4 By

6,700
7:705
14,495

105
14,390
24,495

30.06.2004
s000)

874
™
(708}
44
(43))
(75)|
{3,312)
816
693
(2,638)

7,000
[10)
B,950

5,352
7,705
13,057

12,084
13,057

The accompanying notes on pages 10 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the

financial staterments

Bank of India {(New Zealand) Limited



MNotes to financial statements
For the three months ended 30 June 2015
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1.3

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of Compliance
Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited (the "Bank") 15 a profit-oriented entity incorporated under the Companies Act 1993 and domiciled in

New Zealand, ts principal acthvity is the provision of banking services, Bank of India {New Zealand) Limited was incorporated on g
October 2008, It became a registered bank on 32 Marcn zo11.

The Bank is an FMC reporting entity for the purposes of the Financial Markets Conduet Act 2013 (FMCA 2013} its financial statements
comply with the requirements of the Financial Reporting Act 2013 (FRA 2013) ard the requirements of the Reqgistered Bank Disclosure
Statement (Mew Zealand Incorporated Regisertered Banks) Order 2014 (as amended),

These financial statements have been prepared and presented in sccordance with the Registered Bank Disclosure Statemants (Mew
Zealand Incorporated Registered Banks) Order 2014 (a5 amended),

These financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in New Zealand, as
appropriate for profit-oriented entities, and the New Zealand Equivalent to Interational Actounting Standard ('NZ 1A5') 34 Interim
Financial Reperting, and should be read in conjunction with the Disclosure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2015, These financial
statements also comply with International Accounting Standard 34 Interim Financial Reporting as issued by International Accounting
Standards Board, and they do nat include all information reguired for the complete set of financial statements.

The financial staternents were authorised for issue by the directors on 17th August 2015

Basis of Preparation

The financial staternents have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for certain financial instruments which are carried at
fair value.

The functional and presentation currency 1s Mew Zealand Doliars (MZ1).

The same accounting pelicies and methoeds of computation have been followed in prepaning these financial statements as were used in
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 33 March 2015,

Accounting judgments and major sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Bank's accounting policies; the directors are required to rmake Judgerments, estimates and assumptions abaut
the carrying amounts of assets ard liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on histoncal experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates, The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recogrised m the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects anly that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future peniods.

Allowance for impairment losses

lmpairment allowance on each [oan or receivable is evaluated based upon management's Judgments ir applying the accounting pelicy in
113anhd 1ay.

The determination of impairment allowance réquired for loans which are deemed to be individually significant often requirss the use of
considerable management judgement cancerning such rmatters as local economic conditions, the financial performance of the
counterparty and the value of any collateral held, for which there may not be a readily accessible market. The actual amount of the futue-
cash flows and ther timing may differ from the estimtes used by tne management and conseguently may cause actual losses to differ
fresm the reported allowances.

Bank of Indla [(New Zealand) Limited 10
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Notes to financial statements
For the three months ended 30 June 2015

114

15

1.6

1.8

Standards and Interpretations effective in current period
The following standards and interpretations have become mandatory for the Bank since the previous balance date

Amendments ta NZ 145 24 Related Party Disclosures- The definition of a 'related party'ls extended to include a management enftity that
provided key management personnel (KMP) services Lo the reparting entity, either directly or through a group entity,

For related party transactions that arise when KMP services are provided to a reparting antity, the reporting entity is reéquired to
seperately disclose the amounts that is has recognised as an expense for those services that are provided by a management entity;
however , itis not required ta ook through® the management entity and disciose compensation paid by the management entity to the
individuals providing the KMP services, The reparting entity will alsa need to disclose other ransactions with the management entity
under the exisung disclosure requirements of IAS 24-e.g, Joans.,

Foreign currancy transactions

The Bank's financial statements are presented in the corrency of the primary econemic enviranment in which the entity operates (its
functional currency). The results and financlal position of the Bank are expressed in New Zealand dollars (NZD), which ls the functional
and preseptation currency of the Bank and are rounded to the nearest thousand,

In preparing the financial statements of the Bank, transactions in currencies other than the Bank's functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactiors. At the end of each reporting period,
maonetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period.

Nen-monetary ttems carried at fair value that are depominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
whan the fair value was determined. Mon-manetary items that are measured in tarms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences ae recognised in prafit or loss In the peried in which they arise except when deferred in other comprehensive
incame as gualifving cash flow hedaes.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)
The profit and loss companent of the statement of comprehensive income and all items In the statement of financial position have been
prepared so that all components are stated Inclusive of G5T except to the extent that GST is recoverable from the Inland Revenue,

Comparatives
When the presentationor classification of items is changed, comparative amounts are reclassified unless the reclassification is
impracticable. There have been no presentation or classification changes In the current period.

Revenue recognition
Revenue s recagnised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Bank and that revenue can be reliably
measured The prncipal sources of revenue are interest income and fees.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited 11
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Notes to financial statements
For the three months ended 30 June zo15

interest
Far financlal Instruments measured at amortised cost, the effective Interest method is used to measure the interest incame or sxpense
racognised in the statement of comprehensive Income.

For financial Instruments measyred at fair value, Interest income or expense Is recognised on an acerual basis on a yield to maturity basls,

Fees are generally recognised an an accrual basis when the service has been provided.

Lending Fees

Fees and direct costs relating to loan erigination, finanting or restructuring and ta loan commitments are deferred and amortised ta
interest incame over the life of the laan using the effective interest method. Lending fees mot directly related to the origination of a loan
are recognised over the period of service,

Commission and other fees

Commissions or fees related 1o specilic transactions or events are recegnised in the statement of comprehensive income whan the
service Is provided to the customer, When they are charged for services provided over a period, they are taken to other income on an
acerval basis as the service is provided.

Other income

Dividend income is recorded inthe statement of comprehensive income when the Bank's nght to recewe the dividend is established.
Realised and unrealised gains and losses from remeasurement of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are included in
other Income.

1.9 Finance costs
Interest expense s accried on & Hime basis using the effective interest method. All other finance costs are recognised in profitor loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

1.10 Taxation
Incarme tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax,

Current tax

The tax currently payabile is based on taxable profit for the reporting period, Taxable profit differs from profit as reported inthe
statement of comprehensive income because it exclodes tems of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other penods and it
further extludes iterns that are never taxable or deductible. The Bank’s llability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enscted by the end of the reporting period,

A Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited 12
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Notes to financial statements
For the three months ended 30 June 2015

.31

Deferred tax

Deferred tax Is recognised on differences between the carmying amounits of assets and llabllities in the financial statements and the
carresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable prafit, and are accounted for using the balance sheet lablity method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temparary differences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilivies are not recognised if the temporary difference arises fram
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in 2 business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit narthe accounting profit.

Daferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognisea to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which o utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse inthe foreseeable future

The carrying amowunt of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of 2ach reporting penod and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avaifalbile to allow all oy part of the asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period In which the llability s settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that Have baen enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting penod.
The measurement of deferred tax liabiiities and assets refiects the tax consaquances that would fallow from the manner in which the
Bank expects, at the reparting date, to recaver or settle the carmying amaunt of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset whan there is a legally enforceable right ta set-off current tax assets against current tax
liabiiities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Bank intends to settle its current tax assels
and liabilities on a net bagis,

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense of incame in profit or ioss, except when they relateto items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in egquity, in which case the tax is also recegnised In other comprebensive meome ar directly in equity,

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash, cash at bank, cash In transit and call deposits due fromfto other banks, all of which are used in
the day-to-day cash management of the Bank

Statement of cash flows
The foliowng terms are used in the statement of cash fows:
. operating activities are the principal revenue producing activities of the Bank and other activities that are not investing or
activities;
. investing activities are the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investments not included in cash equiva
" financing activities are activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the contributed equity and borrowin
Bank.

Bank of India {New Zealand) Limited 13
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Notes to financial statements
For the three months ended 30 June 2015

143

Certain cash flows have been netted in order to provide more meaningfu! disclosures, as many cash flows are received and disbursed an
behatf of customers and reflect the activities of those customers,

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets "at fair value through profit or loss” [FVTPL), "held-to-
maturity’ investrnents, ‘available-for-sate’ (AFS) financal assets and “loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and 15 determined at the time of intial recognition. The Bank classifies all of its financial assets as loans
and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables that have fived or determinable payments and are not guoted in an active market are classified as loans and
receivables. Loans and receivables are measured at amartised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment, Interest
Income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate.

Recognition of financial assets
Loans and recewables are recognised an settlemant date and are recognised mitlally st fair value plus directly attributable transaction
costs,

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and recejvables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired whers
there is objective evidence that, as & resultof one or more events that oocurred after the Initial recognition of the fimancial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have been Impacted.

Objective evigence of Impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the lssuer or counterparty; or
. default or delinguency in interest or principal payments; or
. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as loans and advances, assets that are assessed not 1o be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a coliective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portiolio of receivables could include
the Bank's past expenience of callecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit penod of 6o days, as well as abservable changes in national or local econamic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

Forfinancial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discoured at the financial asset's origingl effective interest rate,

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the excepticn of loans
and advances, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account, When & loan or advance is considered
uncallectible, it is written off against the allowance account, Subseguent recoveries of amounts previausly written off are credited
against the allowance account Changes in the carryingamount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

I, in & subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decraases and the decrease can be retated objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recogriised

Bank of India {New Zealand) Limited 14
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1.4

Financial Assets (continued)
Asset Quality
Impaired assets consist of assets acquired through the enforcement of security and other impaired assets

Assets acquired through secunty enforcement are those assets (primarlly real estate) acquired through actual foreclosure or in full or
partial satisfaction of a debt. Other impaired assets refer 1o any credit expeosure for which an impairment loss is recagnised in accordance
with NZ IAS 35 - Fimancial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Ao day past due asset is any loan which has not been operated by the borrower within its key terms for at least go days and which is not
an impalred asset, Although not classified as impaired assets or past due assets, assets in which the counter-party 1= in receivership,
liguidation, bankruptey, statutary management or any form of admiinistration are reported separately These are classified as “other
‘assets under administration”,

Derecognition of financial assets

The Bank derecognises a firancial asset anly when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset sxpire or it transfers the
financial asset and substantially ali the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset Lo another entity. If the Bank neither transfers nor
tetains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to contral the transferred asset, the Bank recognises its
retained Interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Bank retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Bank continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognizes a
collateralised borrowing far the proceeds recaived.

Financial Liabilities
Financial habilities are classified as either financial llabilities ‘at FYTPL or ‘other financial labilities.

Financial abillties are classified as at FVTPL where the financial iability is erther held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL

The Bank classifies alt af its financial liabilities as ather financial labilities. Other financlal llabllities are initially measured at fair value, net
of transaction costs

Qther financial llabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense
recognised on an effective interest basis.

The Bank derecognises financial habilities when, and only when, the Bank's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Bank of india (New Zealand) Limited 15
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1.16

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenover the tarms of the lease transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Bank at their fair valug at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding ifability to the lessar s included i the statement of financial
pasition as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease nhli_gitiun soas to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liabliity. Finance charges are charged directly to profit or loss in accordance with the Bank's
general palicy an financing costs. Cantingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred,

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern over which economic benefits fram the leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives ara recéived to enter into operating leases, such incentives are initially recorded as a liabillty and are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-fine basis over the lease term.

Property and equipment

All irems of property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, Costincludes
expenditure that |s directly attributabie to the acquisition of the item. In the event that settlement of all or par of the purghase
consideratlon is deferred, cost is determined oy discounting the amounts payable in the future to their present value as at the date of
arquisition. Subsequent costs are capitalised If it is probable that future econamic benefits will flow to the Bank and the costs can be
measured reliably. All other maintenance costs are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Deprecation is charged soas to write off the cost of assets, other than freehold land, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight:
lime method ar the written down value method, The estimated wseful lives; residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reparting pérlod, with the effect of any changes In estimate accounted for on a prospective basis, The following depreciation
rates have been used:

Office equipment 20 written down value method
Furniture 0% written down value method
Leasehold improvements 8% straight-line method
Computer equipment 33.33% straight-fine method

Bank of ndia (New Zealand) Limited 16
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Impairment of nan-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Bank reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairmant loss. IF any such indicatian exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment foss (f ary), Where it is not passible to estimate the recoverabile amaunt of an individual
asset, the Bank estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs, Where & reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also alicated 1o Individual cash-generating units, or ctharwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonabile and consistent allocation basks can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and vaiue in use, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash fiows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the rnisks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted,

if the recoverable armounit of an asset {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrylng amount of
the asset {or cash-generating unit) i reduced to It5 recoverable amaunt. Animpairment logs is recognised Immediately in profit or loss;
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carmying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit} 1s ncreased to the revised
estmate of its recoverable amaount, but the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount thar would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating writ) in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carred at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Financial liabilities and equity mstruments issued by the Bank

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either fimancial llabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement

Equity instruments
An equity Instrument |s any cantract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its llabilities. Equity
instrurnents issued by the Bank are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs:

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantes contract iabilities are measured initially at their fair values and, If not designated at FVTPL, are subseguently
measured at the higher of the amount of the obiigation under the contract, a5 determined in accordance with MNZ IAS 37 Provisians,
Cantingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets ; and the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cummulative amortisation
recogrised in accordance with the revenue recognition policies as set out at 1.8 above.
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1.19

1.20

Provisions
Provisians are recognised when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Bank will be required 1o settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obiigation

Fhe amount recagnised a4 a provisian is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period taking into account the risks and uncertainties surro unding the cbligation, Where a pravisian 1 measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the econemic berefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the recewvable is
recognised as an asset if it Is virtually certain that reimbursement will be recelved and the amount of the receivable can be measured
reliahly,

Employee benefits
A provision [ recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of annual leave, long service leave and sick ieave when it Is
probable that settlement will be required and they are capable of being measured rehably,

Pravisions made |n respect of employee benefits expected to bie settled within 12 months are measured at their naminal values using the
remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlemient. Provisions madein respect of employee benefits which are not expected
to be settled within 12 months are measured s the present valle of the estimated future tash outflows to be made by the Bank in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date,
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2 INTEREST
o~
'{I;J naud-fted} {A_u-:_ljt&d] {Unaudited) .
30.06.201 0.06.2014,
. | . : “sooo, 3033015 s soo0]
. Interest income
Loans and advances 1,009 3,527 779
Fram other financial institutions 159 533 123
From related parties - 30 98 228
Totalinterest income 1,198 4,158 924
Interest expense
Depaosits by customers g7 220 38
Depaosits by related parties 283 7532 152
|Total interest expense 370 972 a0
3 DTHER INCOME
- - (Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)|
30.06.2015 31.03.2015 $600 Jo.06.2004
A . S000 sq-_u_ui'
\Banking and lending fee income - Eo 17|
Net commission revenue 2 g 2
|Net foreign exchange gains By 231 52
| Other revenue 4 3 1
|GST recovered 43 35 g
Total other income 133 358 7
& OPERATING EXPENSES
‘Operating expenses include: _ .
(Unaudited) l:ﬁud:ted]n I{.L.Inau-.'.i Ead‘j
30.06.2015 T — 3o.06.2015
. ) 2000 $000
tAuditors remuneration
i Audit of Disclosure Statements - 61 -
i~ Review of Disclosure Statements - 1g -
' Advisary fee -assistance with FATCA 1 20 -
|Directors’ fees 16 66 201
Depreciation
- Leasehold improvemants 23 88 22
Camputer equipment x 13
Gffice equiprment 2 10 i
Furnitura 3 i 3
Total depreciation 29 122 32
Other Expenses 272 852 227
Employee benefit expenses 28g 1,232 273
Cperating lease rental expenses . 71 294 73
Total Operating Expenses 674 2,656 625
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-1

7

LOANS AND ADVANCES

|Residential mortgages loans

;Corporate |loans

|Other loans

Allowance far impairment losses

Met loans and advances

Amounts due for settlement within 12 maonths
Amounts due for settlement after 1z manths
Met loans and advances

TAXATION

Tax expense comprises:
Current tax expense in respect of the current year

Deferred tax expense relating to the origination and reversal of

termporary differences
Prior period adjustment
'Total tax expense

(Unaudited)
30.06.2015
5000
31,632
31,722
ELY)
(261)
63,440
8,950
54,480
63,440

{Unaud'}ted:'u'
30.06.2015'

$000

Ba

(2)

79

The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

|Prafit before income tax expense

_'Inccme tax expense calculated at 28% (zo14; 28%4)
| Pricr period adjustment

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

CASH

|Cash onhand
| Total cash

Bank of india (New Zealand) Limited

(Unaudited)
30.06.2015
%000

82

B2

282
79

7

{Audited)
31.03.2015

$000.

105
105

{Audited)
31.03.2015 S000

28,8og

33332
360

(256)
62,240

9,912
52,328

62,240

(Audited)

31.03.2015 $000

266

(24)
5
247

865
242

247

(Unaudited)|
30.06.2014 S000

3
73

{Unaudited)

30.06.2014
foo0/

23,492
28,600
218
_(?_--Q_S.'!';
51,865
10, 460
43,405
52,865

(Unaudited)'

30.06.2014
$000/

56;

(&)
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AB DEPOSITS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
{Unaudited) {Audited) {Unaudited)
jo.0b.2015 31.03.2015 30.06.2014 $000
$000 %000
Retall deposits 12,65g 17,263 6,816
'Wholesale deposits . . -
Total deposits 12,659 12,263 6,816
‘4mounts due for setthement within 12 months 11,8q4 13,486 6,610
;.ﬁ.muurip_due lor sertlement after 12 months 765 777 _ 206
Total deposits N —_ 12,659 12,263 6,816
g DTHER ASSETS
( S — - {Unaudited) (Audited) iﬁnaudﬂ&&-}.j
jo.ob.2015 30.06.2014
| “ilin 31.03.2015 $000 sann!'
Prepayments b7 120 Py
Interest receivable 261 715 242 |
Total other assets 328 335 323 |
A Arnaunts due for settlement within 2z months 328 135 313
Amaunts due for settlement after 12 months m .
Foteliothr sisets - s 33 313 |
10 DUE FROM OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
N = (Unaudited) [Audrtecl} iUnaud_iEed}'
30.06.2015 30.06.2014
| Shnh 31.03.2015 $000 $600
\Call deposits 12,218 14,390 12,984
‘Short term deposits . 7,000 4,000 1,500
[Total deposits 19,218 18,390 14,484

Amounts due from other financial institutions are dus for settlement within 12 manths of balance date;

11 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE
The Bank is wholly owned by the Bank of India, 3 Company incorporated in Indla. The Bank of India is also the Bank's
ultimate parent, Related parties include other branches and subsidiaries of Bark of India (India) and other parties under
commen control. All related party transactions are conducted on normal commercial terms and conditions, Ne related
party debts have been written off or forgiven during the year,

Guarantee from parent

The obligations of the Bank are guaranteed under a deed of guarantee dated 14 January 2011 given by jts ultimate parent,
Bank of India, in favour of the creditors of Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited.

There are no material legisiative or regulatory restrictions in India which would have the effect of subordinating the ciaims
under the Guarantee of any of the creditors of Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited on the assets of the guarantor, to other
claims on the guarantor, in 2 winding up of that guarantor
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11 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (continuad)
Key management personnel
Key management personnel are defined as being the Directars and Senior Management of the Bank. The
Infarmation relating to the key management personnegl disclosed includes transactions with thoss individuals,
thelr close family members and their controlled entities ——— B
| g (Unaudited) {Audited)
30.08.2025 32.03.2015 $000
: s000
{Salary and other short term benefits 197 816/
Transactions/balances with related parties
N (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited)
30.06.2015 0.06.2014
- S 31.03.2015 $000 3 s:::i
Transactions with related parties
Interest income
‘Bank of India (branches and subsidiaries) 3o 98 23
Other related parties - - -
Interest expense
Bank of India (branches and subsidiaries) . .
|Other related parties 283 752 142l
Net deposit/(withdrawals) with relatad parties {198) 806 zE:,'
Net deposit/(withdrawals) by related parties 165y 8,783 S WAA
Deposits with
Bank of India (branches and subsidiaries) 38Bg 1,549 3,007/
Other related parties - - -
|Depaosits from
‘Bank of India (branches and subsidiaries) 199 230 187 |
Other related parties 23,091 21,216 12,645
,'Dep-usits with related parties -
{Amounts due for settlement within 12 months 3,889 3,540 3,007
‘Amounts due for settlement after 12 months - L ——
:Tuta! Deposits with related parties 3,889 3,549 _ 3,007
|Deposits from related parties
1Amourits due for settlement within 12 months 675 2,091 2327
‘Amounts due for settlement after 12 months 22,615 19,415 10,505
‘Total DEP-DSIES _frnm related parties 23,290 23,446 12,832
12 SHARE CAPITAL
(Unaudited) i,’nudited] {Unaudftadif
30.06.2015 31.03.2015 5000 30:00.2034/
— £000 %000
50,000,010 fully paid D_rdifiar",.r shares 50,000 50,000 50,000
The Bank issued 10 ordinary shares on g Octaber 2008 and 56,000,000 ordinary shares on 7 February 2011. All ardinary
shares have equal voting rights and share equally in dividends and any profits on winding up. Shares do not have a par
value.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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14,

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the period

Maon-cash items:

Impairment |oss recognised on loans and advances
Depreciation and amaortisation of non-current assets
|Deferred tax assets

ianmnts inworking capital:

\Increase in loans and advances

{Increase) ininterest receivable

!Increa se in deposits from customers

IMet Increase in balances due to related parties
|Decrease in prepayments
\{Increase}{Decrease in GST refundable
|{Decrease)/Increase incurrent tax liability
lIncrease/(Decrease) in other liabilities

1Net cash from/used in operating activities

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Bank holds tﬁe ﬁ:llnwm-_; _‘r‘ﬂcial assets for the purpose af ma naging I|q4._:1d11;_,- nsk.
(Unaudited)

|Cash

{Due from other financial Institutions (call & short term deposits)

i Due from other financial institutions (other deposits)
‘Balance due from related parties
Total Liquid Assets

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

{Unaudited)
3o.06.2015
sooo

203

29
{1}

(3,208)
(a7}
196
1,504
54
(26)
{101}

59

30.06.2015
$000

Bz
12,218
7,000
3,889
23189

{(Audited)
31.03.2015
s000

618

23

133

(24)

{13,699)
(24)

B, 140
8,887

5

45

P

G

2,303

(Audited)

31.03,2015
$ooo

105

14,390
4,000
3,549
22,044

{(Unaudited)
30.06.2014;
$000;

1_:3:

i1
EF
4|

{3.312)
{50)|
653
816!

541

44,

(19}

{32}
(2,638)

_{LI naudit&d;
3o.06.2014
$000

73

12,984

500

3,007
17,564

The following capital adequacy information is disclosed in relation to the Bank and is derived in accordance with the
conditions of registration relating to capital adeguacy. For the purpase of the candltions of registration, capital
requirements and ratios are calculated in accordance with the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Capital Adequacy Framework
(BS2A) dated September 2013 and Is disclosed under the Basel lll framework in accordance with Schedule g of the Order.

The information for the comparstive period is calculated based on the Basel Il framework.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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14 CAPITAL ADEQUACLY (continued)

Capital and Capital ratios

Tier 1 capital

Common Equity Tier 1 ("CET1") Capital

Issued and fully paid up ordinary share capital

Hetained earnings

Less deductions from CET1 capital
Deferred tax assets

Total Common Equity Tier 1 Capital

Additional Tier 2 ("AT1") capital

Tier 1 Capital

Tier z Capital

Total capital

Capital ratios and solo capital adequacy

Comman equity Tier 1 capital ratio
Tierica pital ratic
| Total capital ratio

'Minimum ratio requirement

Caommon equity Tier 1 capital ratio
Tier1 capital ratio
| Total capital ratic

| Buffer ratio

|Buffer ratio
Buffer ratio requirement

(Unaudited):

3o.ob.2015
so000
79%
7%
79%

{Unaudited)
30.06.2015

000,

4:5%
6%
8%

{(Unaudited)
30.06.2015

5000

71%
2.5%

(Unaudited),

30.06.2015 So00

50,000
1,760

(8s)]
51,675

51,675

56751

lUnnudited}‘
31.03.2015
$000

81%%

81%

B1%

{Unaudited)
31.03.2015
$000

4-5%

6%

8%

(Unaudited)
31.03.2015
$000

73%

z.5%

(Unaudited)
30.06.2014
_So00|
10456

104

104% |

(Unaudited)
Jo.06.201;
s$000

4.5%/

6%

B%

(Unaudited)
30.06.2014
%000

qb%

2.5%

The Bank has 50,000,010 fully paid ordinary shares (tier one capital) issued at NZs1 pershare. Bank of India is the sale

shareholder. Each share confers on the holder the right to:

. one vate on a poll at & meeting of the Bank on any resolution

. the right to equal share in dividends authorised by the board

= the right to an equal share in the distribution of the surplus assets of the Bank,
. There is no capital instrutment eligible for phase out.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY (continued)

Credit Risk

The Bank's credit risk exposure is denved in accordance with the Reserve Bank document 'Capital adequacy framework
(Standardised Approach)’ (BS2A) dated September 2013,

‘On Balance Sheet exposures as at
‘30 June 2015

Cash and gold bullion
iBanks

‘Residential mortgages not past due: LYR upto Bo%
LVR =8o% & upto goM

; LVR exceeds go¥t

Corporate Loans

Eother assets

Total on balance sheet exposure

|Off Balance
[ohecexpasunes) | Totl Credit conversion factor
#satgo June EXpOSUne
amag

000

Unaudited Unaudited

iOther
‘commitments
|where ariginal
‘maturity is 6,816 5%
imore than on
lyeat
‘Total off
balance sheest 6,816
EXpOsUre

Credit risk mitigation

Total
exposure after
credit risk
mitigation

000
Unaudited

Bz

1g,652

3,455

27,259

4,373

L7232
1,641
88,18

Credit equivalent
amount

Unaudited

3,408

3408

Mo onor off-balance sheet exposures are covered by eligible collateral, guarantees or credit denvatives.

Bank of india |New Zealand) Limited

Risk weight Risk weighted N
BXPOsLTE Minimum
Pillar 2 capital
requirement
so00 £000
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
okt - -
Al 3.930 3151
so% o o
100% 3455 276
5% 9,541 7631
50%‘ zllﬁ? 175
75% - - |
1oo% 33,722 2,538
100% 1,641 131!
52,476 — ‘Ir"ga‘;
—
Average fisk Minirmum Pillar s |
z Risk weighted exposura capital
weight 3
requirement
BO00 $000
Unaodited Unaudited Unaudited
Fa% 2484 g6
2,654 136
|
25
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY (continued)

Taotal capital requirements

As at (Unaudited)
3o-lun-1g

Total credit risk + equity risk
Operational risk

Market risk

Total

Market risk end of period capital charges

As at (Unaudited)
3a-lun-1g

Interest rate risk
|Foreign currency risk
|Eqquity risk

Total

pillar 1 c_.‘zlpia'l' requirmnis
Asat

On-balance sheet credit risk;
Residential mortgages {including pas due, If any)
Carporate

Claims on banks

| Other

Total on-balance sheet credit risk
Other capital requirements

Off halance sheet credit exposures
Operational risk

Market risk

Total other capital requirements
Total Pillar 1 capital requirment

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited

Total exposure
after credit risk
mitigation

s000
Unaudited

95, 0om
nfa
nfa

95,000

30.06.2015

538
2,538
591
131

4298

195
516

e
1,042
_5:240

Risk weighted
exposure of
implied risk

weighted
EXpOSUre
$000

Unaudited

54,930
6,455

4,118

65,503

implied risk’
Waeaighted
Exposure’
$000.
Unaudited

3.987

Sz B

4,118

~33.03.2015

Bé2
2,666
552
125
4208

00
261
873
5,1:;3

Capital requirerment

S000
Unaudited

4,304
516
330

5,240

Aggregate
Capital
Charge

000
Unaudited

33
11

330

p.uﬁ.:nué

86g
1,879
447
140
3,335

66
383
4y
1]

393
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CAPITAL ADEQUALY (continued)

Market risk peak end-of-day capital charges

(Unaudited)
For period ended 30 June 2015

Interest rate fisk
Foreign currency risk
Equity risk

Total

Implied risk Aggregate
Weighted Capital
Exposure Charge
$000 £000
Unaudited Unaudited
3587 ng

131 =0

4128 329

The above capital charges are derived in accordance with the Conditions of Registration relating to capital
adeguacy and the Reserve Bank document entitled "Capital Adequacy Framework” (Standardised

Approach) (B52A) dated September 2013,

Peak end-of-day capital charges are calculated using the Bank's shareholders' equity at the end of the year.

Operational risk

—_—

(Unaudited)
For period ended 30 June 2015
Operational risk

Residential mortgage by loan-to-valuation ratio {LVR)

LVRrange Does not exceed 8ot
| ) Unaudited
value of exposures as at 3o

June 2015

On-balance sheat 27,259
|Off-balance sheet 2,897
Total 30,156

Bank of India [New Zealand) Limited

Exceeds Bo%h and
not go%’

Unaudited

5373

4,373

Total operational risk
Implied risk capital requirement

Waighted |
Exposure '
$000 $000
Unaudited Unaudited
B,555 516
Exceeds
g Total
Unaudited Unudited
31,632
:,59_7
7 34,529
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY (continued)

Capital requirements for other material risks
The other material risks that the Bank has identified are described below:
Reputation Risk: The risk of potential damage to the Bank from a deterioration of reputation.

Transfer Risk: The risk that funds in foreign currencies tannot be transferred out of a country. The risk relates to specific
explicit government restrictions.or simply depleted foreign exchange funds in the non-industrial countries of Africa, Asia,
Latin America and Central and Eastern Europe.

Strategic / Business Risks: Current and prospective impact an earnings or capital arising from adverse business decisions,
improper implementation of decisions, or lack of responsiveness to industry changes.

Tax Risk: Risk arising from adverse changes in relevant taxation laws, failure to correctly identify implications of existing
taxation laws or breaches of tax laws.

Legal Risk: Risk arising from legal proceedings or fallure 1o legally enforce a contractual arrangement relfating to the Bank's
activities.

The Bank has reviewed these other risks and do not believe any individual risk as baing material and requiring a capital
allocation . The Bank will review this allocation methodology every reporting period in line with industry practice as this
area evolves over time.

The Bank measures the primary risks and its overall minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio in accordance with the Reserve Bank
document entitled “Capital Adequacy Framewark” (Standardised Approach) {BS2A) dated September 2013, The Bank's
approach to assess capital adequacy recognises the importance of using both quantitative techniques and gualitative
assessment [management judgement in arriving at a final measure of risk. As part of its ongoing capital planning and
budgeting processes management also develops a range of scenarios as a basis for identifying plausible severe lass evenits
and changes in market conditions and measures | quantifies the potential financial impacts (direct and indirect) on the
Bank's capital adequacy for the foreseeable future (2-3 years).

Senlor management of the Bank is responsible for the capital planning and budgeting process and is required to perform
ongoing calculation of Capital Adequacy Ratio and report this to the Board of Directors on a regular basis. The Board of
Directors of the Bank is responsible to manitor the Capital Adequacy Ratio on a reguiar basis.

Bank of india (New Zealand) Limited 28
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY (continuud)

Capital ratios of the ultimate parent bank

CET 1 capital ratio
Tier one capital ratio

Asat
31.03.2015
7.18%
B.a7¥)
10.73%

The ultimate parent bank is Bank of India, domiciled In India. Figures are taken from Bank of India's Financial Results for
the period ended 31 March 2015 from its website. The above ratios are derlved in accordance with the Capital Adequacy
Framewark {Base| I} as per Reserve Bank of India (RBI) guidelines effective 31 March 2008,

Bank of India s required by the R8I to held minimum capital at least equal 1o that specified under the Basel || (standardised)

approach, At balarice date (1.2, 31 March 2015) Bank of India was in compliance with the requirements imposed.

Bank of India has published pillar three disclosure information on the implamentation of the Basel || capital adequacy
framework on its website and can be found at http:/fwww.bankofindia.co.in,

ASSET QUALITY

The Bank has no past due and impaired assets, individually impaired assets, and individual credit impairment allowances as

at 30 June zo15 (32 March 2015 M),

Allowance for impairment losses

As at 30 June 2e15 (Unaudited)

Collectively assessad provisions

Balance at 1 April 2015

Charge to statement of comprehansive income
Other movernents

Balance at 30 June 2015

Individually assessed provisions

Balance at 1 April 2015

Charge to statement of comprehensive income
Other movements

Balance at 30 June 2015

Total allowance i’nrlmpairmt losses

Bank of India [New Zeéaland) Limited

Residential
mortgage

loans

$000

1185
15,

1301

130

On balance

sheet

corporate
EXpOSUres

soo0

141

(z0]

131

i1

Other on balance
sheet exposures

£000

Total

F000

256
5

263!
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15 ASSET QUALITY (continued)

On balance

i ial
R;:iE:“: sheet Other on balance Total
933 corparate sheet exposures

exposures
£000 000 $000 000

Collectively assessed provisions

Ag at 30 June 2014 (Unaudited) loans

Balance at1 April 2004 106 137 - 33

Charge to statement of comprehensive incame B 3 . u;l
Otnher movernents - |
Balance at 30 June 2014 114 130 = Ty
Indlvidually assessed provisions I .
Balance at 1 Apni 2014 - : =
Charge to statement of comprehensive income . -
Other movernents . . .

IBiiinu at 30 June 2004 . i
Total allowance for impairment losses xid, 130 .- 1%4

Impairment losses on loans and advances

Residential Onbalance sheet Other an balance sheet Total
mortgage loans  cotperate expasures ENpoNes
s000 Foad 2000 00
Caoliactively assessed provisions 15 (2} : 5
Individually assessed provisions - c 2
Cther movements g . - ”
Balance at 3o June 2015 15 {10) ¥ 5
Collectively assessed provisions B 3 i i1
Individually assessed provisions : . »
Other moyements . L -
Balance at 3o June 2014 8 3 - 11

The Bank assesses on a monthly basis whether objective evidence of impairment exists individoally for loans and advances. IF the Baik
determings that no objective evidence of impairment exists for individualiy assessed loans and advances, loans and advances with similar
credit risk characteristics are grouped and assessed collectively for impairment.

Toasses
impairment on a collective basis, loans and advances are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics. Loans which are
mdividually mpaired, are excluded from the assessment of collective provisions. The assessement for collective impairment :5 based on
&ll the available and relevant information, which in case of the Bark is peer graup expenence of loan losses.

Barlk of India (New Zealand) Limited a0
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1g ASSET QUALITY (¢continued)

If there 1s objective evidence that an impairment on loans and advances has been incurred, the amount ofthe charge is measured as the
difference between the loans and advances’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
Inans and advances' oniginal effective interest rate,

The Bank does not have any financial assets designated as tair value through profit or loss as atand for the period ended 30 June, 2015
t31 March 2oas: snil). As such, there ware no changes in fair value attrinutable to changes in credit risks that have been charged to the
statement of comprehensive ncome for the period ended 30 June zoas (31 March zoas: snif)

There was no aggregate amount of undrawn balances on iending commitments to counterparties for whom drawn balances are
classified as individually impaired a4 at and for the pericd ended 30 June 2015 (31 March 2015 snil).

-9 There were no other assets Under administration as at and for the year ended 3o June 2015 (31 March 2015; $nil).
1b FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

Loans and i :F “:m:ial Total
’ R a ies at ota
As at 30 Juné 2015 (Unaudited) receivables i adt
000 $000 %000
Assets
Cash 82 - Bz:
Balance due from related parties 3,880 . 3889
Due from other financial institutions 19,218 - 19,218
Loans and advances 63,440 . 63440
interest receivable 261 - 26z
Total financial assets BE,850 - 86,850
Mon-financial assers 5295 2,294
Total assets 88,18s 88,184
-5
Liabilities
Balance dus to related parties : 23,2490 23,290
Deposits and other bormowings 13,659 11,650
i Other liabllities - 447 47
Total financial liabifities : 36,396 36,396
Man-financial labilities 28 26!
Total liabilities 36,424 36,424
Bank of India [Mew Zealand) Limited 31
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16 FIMANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

Categories of financial instruments

Loans and Financial
: liabilities at Total.
Asabas Marchanas (Aidited) recqlvables amortised cost
$o000 S000 sS000
Assets
Cash 105 E 05
Balance dué from related parties 3549 = 3,549
Due from other financial institutions 18,390 - 18,390
Loans and advances 63,240 - 63,240
Interest receivable 215 - a5
Total financial assets By, 499 - B, 499
MWon-financia! assets 1,244 1244
Total assets 85,743 85,743
Liabilities
Balance due to related parties - 21,446 2,446
Deposits and other barrowings . 13,263 12,263
Other liabilities . 348 348
Total financial liabilities - 34,057 34,057
Non-financial abilities 179 129
Total liabilities 34,186 34,186
Loans and Financial
. liabilities at Total
As ot 30 June 201 (Unaudited) receivables irbreead cast
000 3000 £000
Asgets
Cash 3 - 73
Balance due from related parties 3,007 - 3,007
Due from other financial institutions 14,48 . iy B
Loans and advances 51,865 . 51,865
Interest receivable 251 . 23
Total financial assets Bg;670 - 69,670,
Non-financial assets 1,272 1372
Total assets 70,942 70,942
Liabilities
Balance due to related parties . 11,832 12,832
Deposits and other borrowings 6,816 6,816
Other liabilities ; 223 227
15,875 19,975
Meon-financial liabilities - =
Total financial liabilities - 15,875 25,875

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value of financial instruments

Carrying Estimated Fair

As 3t 39 June 2005 (Unaudited) Amounts Value
$000 2000
Financial assets
Cash B2 Bz
Balance due from related partes 3,880 1,BBg
Due from other financial institutions 19,218 15,218
Loans and advances 63,440 63,613
A Interest receivable 263 261
Total financial assets 86,850 87,063

Financial liabilities

£ Balance due ta related parties 3,290 23,457
Deposits and other borrowings 11,659 13,762
Other liabilities 447 457
Total financial liabilities 36,396 36,666
Carrying Estimated Fair
As 2t 31 March 2015 (Audited) Amounts Value
5000 sooo

Financial assets
Cash 108 105
Balance due from related parties 23,544 3549
Due fram other financial institutions 18,350 18,350
Loans and advances 62,240 62,295
interest recceivable g 215
Total financial assets B, 499 84,554

e Financial liabilities

Balance due o related parties 21,446 71,808
Deposits and other barrowings 12,763 12,3495
" Other liabilitles 348 348
Total financial ilabilities 34,057 34,551

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limiited
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value of financial instruments

Carrying Estimated Fair

A5 at 30 June 2o15{Unaudited) Amounts Value

soo00 o000
Financial assets
Cash e ] 73
Balance due fram related parties 007 3,005
Due from other financial institutions 4484 14,309
Loans and advances 531,865 51,575
Interest recceivable 241 141
Total financial assets 6g,670 689,203
Financial liabilities
Baiance due torelated parties 22,833 12,617
Deposits and other borrowings 6,816 B 586
Other liabliities 317 27
Total financial liakilities 1g,87¢ 10,332

Fair value estimation

Quated market prices, when available, are used as the measure of fair values for financial instruments. However, for some
of the Bank's financial instruments, quoted market prices do not exist. For such financial Instruments, fair valiies presented

are estimates derived using present value or other market accepted valuation techniques, These technigues involve
uncertainties and are affected by the assumptions used and judgements made regarding risk characteristics of various
financial instruments, discount rates, estimates of future cash flows, future expected loss experience and other factors.
Changes in assumptions could significantly affect these estimates and the resulting fair values

The fair value estimates were determined by application of the methods and assumptions described belaw.

Cash
For cash assets, the carrying amount is equivalent to the fair value as they are highly liquid. For short term liquid assets,
estimated fair values are based on quoted market prices.

Balance due from other financial institutions
These are call and short term deposits with other financial institutions which are relatively liguid and therefore carrying
amount |s equivalent to fair value.

Advances to customers

For variable rate loans and advances, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value. For fixed rate loans and
advances, fair values have been estimated using a discounted cash flow model with reference to market interest rates,
prepayment rates and rates of estimated credit losses.

Cther financial assets

Included in this category are interest receivables and other shart term receivables. Forthese balances the carrying value
considered to approximate the fair values, as they are short term in nature or are receivabie on demand,

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Deposits by customers

For fixed term deposits by customers, fair values have been estimated using a discounted cash flow model with reference
to market interast rates, For other deposits by customaers, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are generally short-term and are expected to be settled within one year. Therefore, the carrying
amount is equivalent to fair value.

Credit risk
Credit nisk 1s the risk of loss arising as a result of the dimingtion in credit quality of the borrower or counterparty and the risk
that the borrower or counterparty will default on contractual repayments underand sdvance.

As at 30 June 2015, the Bank deposited its funds with financial institutions with a credit rating from Standard & Poors' of AA-
{zo13; AA-) orwith related parties. The Bank has established a Credit Committee that specifirally oversees and co-
ordinates the Bank's credit risk management functions. The Credit Cormmittee has primary respansibility for identifying,
measuring and monitoring the Bank's exposure to credit risk. The Credit Committee reports to the Board on credit risk on a
quarterly basis.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The credit policy has been set by the Credit Committee and approved by the Board, Bank officers seek Credit Committee
approval before deviating from any lending guideline or policy. Credit approval autharities have been delegated by the
Board to senior executives of the Bank. Compliance with these policies is monitored by the Credit Committee and reported
1o the Board,

Credit rating models

The Bank assesses sk at the time af appraisal of the loan using its rating model for various types of borrowers. A business
portfolio is assessed on a risk rated basis and a retail portfolio on a scoring basis.

redi re
As a means of avoiding concentration of credit risk, the Bank sets ceilings in relation to single/group borrowers, unsecured
borrowers and with respect to each industry sector.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that exposure to price movements in financial instruments, arising as a result of changes in market
variables, will result ina loss sufferred by the Bank, The Bank has established a Risk Management Committee that is
responsible for, among other things, identifying, measuring and monitaring the Bank's exposure to market risk. The Risk
Management Caommittee meets on a quarterly basis and receives guidance and technical support from staff in the Bank of
India head office. The relevant process for each category of market risk is as follows:

Interest rate risk

The Bank undertakes interest rate sensitivity gap analysis on a quarterly basis on a contractual basis as a means of

Foreign exchange risk

The Bank undertakes analysis an material open foreign exchange positions through ensuring foreign exchange deposits are
matched by corresponding foreign exchange balances held with financial institutions as & means to monitor fareign
exchange nisk.

Bank of india (New Zealand) Limited 35
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RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Equity risk
The Bank does not have any equity risk.

Liquidity risk
Lrquidity risk occurs when an institution 1s unable to fulfil its commitment in the time when the commitment falis due. The
Risk Managerment Committee is responsible for identifying, measuring and monitoring liquidity nsk affecting the Bank.

The Bank monitors its one-week and one-manth mismatch ratios and its core funding ratio on & daily basis to ensure
compliance with regulatory requirements.

Operational risk
Operational fsk Is the risk of loss resulting from Inadequate or failed Internal processes, people and systems or from
external events.

The Bank's senior managernent is responsible for implementing the operational sk management initiatives formulated by
the Board. The Bank's senior management meets monthly to analyse changes or trends in respects of operational risk. The
Bank's senior managerment may make recommendations to the Board on strategies that may improve the Bank's
operational risk profile.

Capital adequacy
The Board and senlor management underake capital planning, in accordance with the Bank's internal capital adequacy
assessment palicy. As part of the capital planning process, the Board reviews:

- The current capital requirements of the Bank;
. The targeted and sustainable capital in terms of business strategy and risk appetite; and
. Future capital planning (with a three year outlook),

The capital plan Is revised on an annual basis or more regularly If necessary, tomeet the Bank's obligations under Basel ll,
For further information, see Note 15

Reviews of Bank's risk management systems
There have been no reviews conducted in respect of the Bank's risk management systems since inauguration,

Internal audit function

The Bank utilises an internal audit function as a control measure to enable senior management of the Bank to menitor and
review the Bank on an ongoing basis. The internal audit function of the Bank is part of the Bank of India's pelicy to ensure
that all Bank of India branches and subsidiaries have appropriate systems and procedures in place and comply with all
applicable home and host country regulations. Specifically, the Bank s subject to a monthly compliance review that is
undertaken by senior management of the Bank. The purpose of this review is to check constant and concurrent compliance
with all systems and procedures by the Bank. The Bank of India's head office Internal sudit team has not reviewed the Bank
for this financial year as part of its overseas subsidiaries rotation of internal audits.
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CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT EXPOSURE TO INDIVIDUAL COUNTERPARTIES

Credit exposure is calculated on the basis of actual exposure net of any amounts offset and any individual eredit
Impairment allowances. The credit exposure Information excludes credit exposures to connected persans, bank
counterparties and the central government of any country with a long term credit rating of A- or A3 or above, orits
equivalent.

There were no individuzl bank counterparties which the Bank's Banking Group has an aggregate credit exposure that
equals or exceeds 10% of the Bank's Barking Group's equity as at 30 June 201531 March 2015: Nl ),

There were three(3) non-bank counterparties which the Bank's Banking Group has an aggregate ¢redit exposure that
equals or exceeds 10% of the Bank's Banking Group's equity as at 30 June 2015 (31 March zo15:4),

There were no individual bank counterparties which the Bank's Banking Group has a peak end-of-day aggregate credit
exposyre that equals or exceeds 10% of the Bank's Banking Group’s equity for the period ended 30 June 2015 (33 March
2025:NIl)

There were four(y) non-bank counterparties which the Bank's Banking Group has a peak end-of-day aggregate credit
exposure that equals or exceeds 10% of the Bank's Banking Group's equity for the year period ended 30 June 2015

(32 March 2015; 5) '

30/06/2015
_ = - Unaudited
,i!;’ermntage of sharshaolders = ——— Humt};r-_m_‘ l_'fpn.ﬂ_-a;ﬂit Cquﬂ.f_ﬂfj:_ta;li_n =
fenuTy “A" Rated "8" Ratod Unrated Tozl
As ot Balance Date
m% 1% 1l l 2 2
5Hh - 105 | - - 1 1
Toeal e - 3 3
= Enpa'sure 1 | ; i :
0% 1% , = 3 3
515%- 35% | . -
Tetal i e & 4
30/06/2014 |
Unaudited
iPEl'L‘eﬂtHgH af sharehalders - . HNurnber of Mon Bank Countorparties
equity "4 Rated “B'Rated  Unrated Total
‘At Balance Date h
300 - 1498 . . 1 1
A% - 10% Il . 1 1
Total [ ' . | 2 2
Peak Exposure . - ———
0% - 149 | | 1 1
155 - 1% 1l il 1
otal | - Il il . 2 2
31/03/2015
Audited
P:f:ontugeufsharnhﬂdm;; Numbar of Nen Bank Counterparties
Bouity “A" Rated 8" Rated ' Unrated Total
As at Balance Date — - =
1o - 1% " : 3 3
15:%; '1?_.% - M i 1
Total i ’ . = H d &
Peak Exposure — 3
10 - 14 i = 4 i
15% - 1% - - 1 i
Tota | i 1 - 5
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COMMITMENTS

Capital Commitments
As at 30 June 2015, the Bank does not have any commitments for capital expenditure. (2014 $nll).

Operating lease commitments
Operating leases relate to the Bank's prermses and motar vehicles,

(Unaudited) {Audited) (Unaudited)

30.06.2015 T 30.06.2014

| - sooo 5 $000
Mot longer than one year 257 7z 280
Longer than ane yearand not longer than five years 596 672 738
Longer than five years igh 385 472
T:_]tal 1,209 3,329 1,490

INSURANCE BUSINESS AND NON-FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
The Bank does not canduct any insurance business, securitisation, funds management, other fiduciary activities, and
marketing and distribution of insurance products,

SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Bark operates in a single segment, predominatly in the banking and finance industry in New Zealand.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

{Unaudited) (Audited). (Unaudited)
30.06.2015 31.03.2015  30.06.2014
_ . 5000 000 5000,
Performance/ffinancial guaranteas issued on behall of customers 1637 100 -
Total contingent liabilities 163 120 .
Undrawn commitmeants 6,653 4,197 3,106

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
There were no significant subsequent events arising up to the date of signing of these accounts,

Bank of India [New Zealand) Limited 38



Appendix 1

Credit Ratings Scales

Long Term Debt Ratings H?:’:ifi Moody’s Fitch IBCA
Highest quality | Extremely strong capacity to pay interest and principal AAA ABA AAA
High quality [ Very strong Ay Ab Ad
Upper medium grade [ Strong A A A
Medium grade (lowest investment grade) | Adequate BBB Baa BEB
Predominately speculative [ Less near term vulnerability to default BE Ba BB
Speculative, low grade / Greater vulnerability B B B
Poor to default { identifiable vwinerability ccC Caa ccc
Highest speculations cc Ca cC
Lowest quality, no interest C C c
Payment in default, in arrears — questionable value D D

Credit ratings between AA — CCC by Standard & Poor's and Fitch Ratings may be modified by the addition of a
plus or minus sign (signalling higher and lower end of the scale respectively). Moody's Investor Services applles
numeric modifies 1,2 and 3 to each generic rating classification with @ 1 indicating a higher ratingand a 3
indicating a lower rating within that generic rating category.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Conditions of registration for Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited

These Conditions of registration apply on and after 1 November 2014

The registration of Bank of India [New Zealand) umited {"the bank™) as 2 registered bank 5 subject to the following conditions:

L

LA,

That =

(@) the Total capuai ratio of the hanking group is not less than 8%;
(B) the Tier 1 capital ratio of the banking group is not less than 6%:
(c) the Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio of the banking group is not less than 4.5%;
I:ﬂ ) the capital of the banking group Is nat less than 530 millian; and
(e) the process in Subpart 2H of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand document:
"Capital Adeguacy Framawork (Standardised Approach]” (B524) dated
July 2014 15 followed for the recognition and repayment of capital,

For the purpeses of this conditien of registration, capital, the Total capital ratio, the Tier 1 capital ratlo, and the Common
Equity Tiar 1 capital ratio must be calculated In accordance with the Resarve Bank of New Zealand document; "Capltal
Adequacy Framework (Standardised Approach)” (BS24) dated luly 2014

That—

(@) the bank has an Internal capital adequacy assessment process {"ICAAR") that accords with the requirements set out
in the decument "Guldelines on a bank’ Internal capital adequacy assessment process ("ICAAR" )" (B512) dated
Dacember 2007;

(b} under its ICAAP, the bank identifies and measures its "other material risks” defined as all material risks of the
bankinig group that are not explicitly captured in the calculation of the Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, the

Tier 1 capital ratio and the Total capital ratio under the requirements set-out In the document "Capital
Adequacy Framework (Standardised Approach)” (BS2A) dated July 2014;
and

{£) the bank determines an internal capital allocation for each identified and measured “other material risk”

1B. That, if the buffer ratio of the banking group 15 2.5% or less, the bank must:

{a) according to the fallowing table, limit the aggregate distributions of the bank's earmings to the percantage
limit to distributians that carresponds to the banking group's bufter ratio;

Percentage limit to distributions of the bank's

Banking group's buffer ratio earnings

0% - 0.525% o¥

>0.625 - 1.75% - 20%

5125 -1 875% - 40%

>1.875-2.5% BO% |

(b) prepare a capital plan ta restore the banking groun's buffer ratic 1o above 2.5% within any timeframe
determined by the Resarve Bank for restoring the buffer ratio; and
(€) have the capital plan approved by the Reserve Bank,

For the purpose of this condition of registration,—

“bufier ratio”, "distributions”, and "earnings” have the same meaning as In Part 3 of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand
document: "Capital Atequacy Framework (Standardised  Approach)” (BS2A] dated July 2014,
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Appendix 2

2 Thatthe banking group does not conduct any nen-financial activities that inaggregate are matenal relative 1o its total
activities.

in this condition of registration, the meaning of "matenal” is based on generally accepted an:nuﬁt'rng practice,

3. That the banking group's insurance business Is not greater than 1% of its total consolidated assets

For the purpases of this canditlon of registration, the banking group's Insurance busingss s the sum of the following amounts
for entitiesin the banking group:

{a) if the business of an entity predominantiy conslsts of insurance business and the entity |5 not a subsidiary of
another entity in the banking group whose business predominantly consists of insurance business, the amount of
the Insurance Business to sum s the total cansolidated assets of the group headed by the entity; and

[b:l if the entity conducts insurance business and its Business does not predominantly consist of insurance business and
the entity Is not a subsidiary of another entity in the banking group whose business predominantly congists ol
insurance business; the amount of the Insurance business to sum (s the tetal abllities relating ta the entity's
insurance business plus the eguity retained by the entity to meet the solvency or financial soundness needs of (1S
insurance business

In datermining the total amount of the banking group's insurance business—

{a] all amounts must relate to on balance sheet items only, and must camply with generally acce pted accounting
practice; and

(b} i products or assets of which an insurance business is comprised also containa non-nsurance
component, the whole of such products or assets must be considered pait of the insurance business.

Far the purposes of this condition of registration,—

"insurance business” means the undertaking ar-assumption of liability as an insurer under & contract of insurance:
“insurer” and "contract of insurance” have the same meaning as provided in sections & and 7 of the Insurance (Prudential
Supervision) Act 2010,

4. Thatthe aggregate credit exposures {of a non-capital nature and net of any allowances for impairment) of the banking group
to all connected persons do not excead the rating-contingent lmit outhined in the following matrx:

Connected exposure limit I % of thﬁ Banking

Credit ratings of the bank’ Group's Tier 1 capital)

AA/AaZ and above B b .

AA-/ha3 " i

A+fBd i -
AfA2 o | = O

AJA3 30

BBB+/Baal and below i3

Within the rating-contingent limit, credit exposures (of a non-capital nature and net of any allowances fot impaktment] to
non-bank connected persons shall not exceed 15 percent of the banking group’s Ther Lcapital

! This table uses the rating scales of Standard & Poor’s, Fitch Ratings and Moody's Investors Service. {Fitch Ratings scale
is identical to Standard & Poor's.)
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For the purposes of this condition of registration, compliance with the rating-contingent connected exposure limit is
determined |n accordance with the Reserve Bank of New Zealand document antitled "Connected Exposures Policy” {B58)
dated October 2014

That exposares to connected persons are not on more favourable terms le.g as relates to such matters as credit-assessment,
tenor, interest rates, amortisation schedules and requirement lor collateral) than corresponding exposures to non-connected
PErsans.

That the bank complies with the following corporate governance requirements:

[@a) the board of the Bank must have at least five directors,
(b)) the majority of the board members must be non-executive directors;
{C] at least half of the board members must be independent directars;
(d) an alternate director,—
i for & non-executive director st be non-executive: and
ii. foran independent director must be independent;
I'IE:I at least half of the independent directors of the bank must be ordinarlly resident in New Zealand;
(f) the chairpersan of the board of the bank must be independent; and
(B} the bank's constitution must not include any provision permiitting a directar, when exerciting powers or performing
duties as a director. to act other than in what he or she believes is the best interests of the company [1Le: the bank],

For the purposes of this condition of registration, "nan-executive" and "independent” have the same meaning as in the
Reserve Bank of New Zealand docoment entitled "Corporate Governanee” [BS 14) dated luly 2014

That no appointment of any director, chief executive officer, or executive wha reports or is accountable dicectly to the chief
executlve officer, 1s made In respect of the bank unless;

I:a} the Resarve Bin{: has bean supplied with a copy of the curriculum vitae of the proposed appointee; and
{b) the Reserve Bank has advised that It has no abjection to that appointment

8. Thata person must not be appointed as chairperson of the board of the bank unless:

{a] the Reserve Bank has been supplied with a copy of the curriculum vitae of the proposed appointee; and
(b) the Reserve Bank has advised that it has no objection to that appointment.

g, That the bank has a board audit committee, ar other separate board commiltes covering audit matters, that meats the
feliowing requirements:

{a) tha mandate of the committee must include; ensuring the integrity of the bank's financial contrals, reporting
systerms and Internal audit standards;

{b] the committes must have at lsast three members;

() every member of the committee must be 3 non-executive director of the bank,

{d:l the majority of the members of the committes must be independent; and

[e) the chairparson of the cormmittee Tust be independent and must not be the chairperson of the barik,

Far the purposes of this candition of registration, “non-executive” and “Independent” have the same meaning as in the
Reserve Bank of New Zealand document entitled “Corporate Governance” (BS 14) dated July 2014

10. That a substantial propartion of the bank's business is conducted in and from New Zealand.

11. Thatthe banking group complies with the following quantitative requirements for liguidity-nsk management:

{a] the one-week mismatch ratio of the sanking group 1s not less than 2ero per cent at the end of each business
day;
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(b)
(c)

the ons-manth mismatch ratic of the barking group 15 not less than zero per centat the end of each business
day; and

the one-year core funding ratio of the banking group is not fess than 75 per cent af the end of each business
day.

For the purposes of this conditian of registration, the ratios ideatified must be calculated in accordance with the
Reserve Bank of New Zealand documents entitled "Liguidity Policy” {B513) dated July 2014 and "Liguidity Policy Anngx:
Liguid Assets” (BS13A) dated December 2011,

17, That the bank has an internal framewark for liquidity risk management that [s adeguate in the bank's view for
managing the bank's liquidity sk ata prudent level, and that, In particular:

(a)
(b)
e}
(d)

is clearly documented and communicated to all those In the crgarisation with responsibility for managing
lguidity and liguidity risk;
|dentifies responsibility far approval, oversight and implementation of the framework and policies tor |lquidity

‘risk management;

identifies the prindipal methods that the bank will use for measuring, menitoring and controlling liguidity risk;
and

considers the material sources of stress that the tank might face, and prepares the bank 10 manage stress
through a contingency funding plan.

13 That no more than 10% of total assets may be beneficially owned by a 5PV,
For the purposes of this condition,—

“1otal assets” means &l assets of the banking group pluy any assets held by any 5PV that are net included in the banking
group’s assets:
"SPY means a person—

(a)
(b)

(c)

to whom any member of the banking group has sold, assigned, or otherwise transterred any asseét;

wha has granted, or may grant, @ security Interest in lts-assets for the benefit of any holder of any covered
bond; and

who carries on no other business except for that necessary or Ihcidental to guarantee the abligations of any
member of the banking group under a covered bond:

“covered bond” means a debt security issued by any member of the banking group, for which repayment to holders is
guaranteed by a SPV, and investors retain an unsecured clam on the issuer

14 That -

(@) no member of the banking group may give effect to a gualifying acquisition or business combination that meets
the netification threshold, and does not meet the non-gbjection threshold, unless:

i, the bank has notified the Reserve Bank in writing of the Intended acquisition or business combination and
al least 10 working days have passed: and

Wi, atthe time af notifying the Reserve Bank of the Intended acquisition er business combination, the bank
provided the Reserve Bank with the information reguired under the Reserve Bank of New Zealand
Banking Supervision Handbook document "Significant Acquisitions Policy” (B515) dated December 2011;
and

(b} e member of the banking group may give effect to a qualifylng acquisition of business combination that meets
the non-objection threshald unless:

| the hank has notified the Reserve Bank in writing of the intended acquisition or busingss combination;

43



i atthe time of notifying the Reserve Bank of the Intended acquisition or business combination, the bank
provided the Reserve Bank with the infarmation required under the Reserve Bank of Mew Zealand
Banking Supervision Handbook document "Significant Acquisitions Policy" (B515) dated December 2011,
and

iil. the Reserve Bank has given the bank a notice of non-objection to the significant acquisition or business
com hinnuﬁn.

For the purpose of this condition of registration, "qualifying acquisition of business combiration”, "rotification threshold”
and “non-objection threshold! have the same meaning as in the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Banking Supervision
Handoook document “Significant Acquisitions Policy” (B515) dated December 2011,

15, That, for a lean-to-valuation measurement period, the total of the Bank's qualifying new mortgage lending amounts must not
tor residential properties with a loan-to-valuation ratio of more than 80%, exceed 10% of total of the qualifying new
mortgage lending amounts arising in the loan-to-valuation measurement period.

16, That the bank must not make a residential mortgage lean unless the terms and conditions of the loan contract or the terms
and conditions for an asseclated morgage require that & borrower abtain the bank’s agreement before the borrowercan
grant 1o another person a charge over the residential property used as security over the loan,

17, That the bank must not permit @ borrower to grant a chasge In favour of another pecson over & residential property used as
security for a residential mongage loan unless the sum of the lending secured by the charge and the loan value fof the
residential mortgage Ioan would not exceed 80% of the property value of the residential property when the iending secured
by the charge ls drawn down,

18. That the bank must not provide a residential mortgage loan if the residential property to be mortgaged to the bank as
security for the residential martgage [oan is subject toa charge In favour of another person unless the totalamount of eredit
secured by the residential property would not exceed 80% of the property velue when the residential mortgage loan Is drawn
down,

19, That the bank must not act as broker or arrange for a member of |ts banking group to provide a residential marigage loan.
In these conditions of registration,—

“banking group” —

fa] means Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited (as repurting entity) and all other entities included |n the group as defined In
section 6(1) of the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013 for the purposes of Part 7 of that Act {unless paragraph (b) appiies); ar

means Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited's financlal reporting group [as defined In section 2[1) of the Financial Reporting Act
14993} it the Financial Reparting Act 1993 applies to the bank!

"generally accepted accounting practice”

la) hasthe same meaningas in section 8 of the Financial Reporting Act 2013 {unless paragraph [b) applies); or

{b} means generally accepted accaunting practice within the meaning of section 3 of the Financlal Reporting Act 1993 if the bank
is required 1o prepare financial statements inaccordance with that practice,

I conditions of registration 15 10:19, —
“laan-to-valuation ratio®, "loan value”, "praperty value”, “gualifying new mortgage lending amount” and “residential mortgage
joan” have the same meaning as in the Reserve Bank of New Zealand document entitled “Framework for Restrictions on High-LVR

Residential Mortgage Lending” (B519) dated October 2014:

“laan-to-valuation measurement pariod" means a period of six calendar months ending gn the last day of the sisth alendar
manth, the first of which ends on.the last day of March 2014,
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DEED OF GUARANTEE

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited

Dated 14" January, 2011

DEED OF GUARANTEE

By

BANK OF INDIA

In respect of the obligations of

BOI (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED
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)

Al

1.

1.1

=1
THIS DEED s made on |4 nJRﬂwra 2011
8y

BANK OF INDIA & body corporate constituted under the Banking Companies (Acquisiion &
Transter of Undenskings) Act, 1870, naving its Head Ofice at Star House C-5. G Block. Bandm-
Hurla Comples, Bargra (East), Mumbay, indis {heretnafier rafered 1o as the "Bank™);

AND

oY iny

Yoveig iﬁ ﬁpuug

BO[ (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED & Company incorporated in New Zealand having i register
office at Level 18, PreewatemouseCoopars Tower, 188 Quay Shest, Auckland, New Zealg
(rerelnafier rafamed 1o as "BalNZ™)

IN FAVOUR OF
EACH CREDITOR OF BOINZ

WHEREAS :

EOEL
dLEM-T

BOINZ Is a wholly cwned subsidiary ¢f the Bank and set up for the purpcse of daing fhe bus
of banking in Mew Zeatand

150 Qg
‘inbeumin s es 2
EEINAAZ YR PIpUEE P JutE

o

b

Tha Bank enters inta this Dead of Guaranies fof the purpose of guaranieoing tha obilgations of s
subaidiary. BelNZ, 10 the extent provided far by the torms of this Desd.

(]

3

3

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

In tnis Doed and In the Recitals, unless the cantost othenéiaz reqLines: E

“Authorised Office:™ means. whote 8 Ceaditor is 8 Parson olver than & natural a
ar sechelary of thal Person or & person duly authorised by the Creditor under the fesolu
seal of tha Person: g

“Buslness Day" meers any day. other thun & Salldey o Sunday ar pubiic huﬁg.y. @u%d'v
barniks are open for general busingss In Wedington snd Auckland;

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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12

13

1

2.2

23

4

“Craditor’ means each and ahy Person fo whom an Obligation is due and owed by BoiNZ duting
the validity perod of this Guarantes.

"Guarantes” means the guaranies by the Bam far tna benefil of Ihe Creditors pursuant and
subject to the terms and condifons of this Deed;

“Obligation” mzans a iegally anforceable, undisputed laliily v obligitivn ol BOINE o 8 Cradier
tanking &t leest pari paseu with the elsims of unsedured oredilors of BoiNZ, PROVIDED THAT
"Opligation” shal not include:

(@) - any labilty of SalNZ in respect of Spaclal, exemplary or puritive damages; antior

(B) any labllily tor paymaent of laves, rales, Imposts, duties or wimilar government charges,
andlor

{c) any claimifability/obiigation which is subject lo 3 bona fide disputs, andfor

{d)  wny obfigation in respect of wiich the Crediter nas ot submitted proper proof and oihar
documents and socurily, to anable BOINZ 1o discharge tne sald otdigations; andfor

(=)  sny clamiobligation in respect of a contingant lizbility: andios
(N anyclRimYabiity which s bamed by the law of Tmidaticn or such similar lBws.

*Parson” means any person, him, fust, ealate, corpomdion, association, co-operative, govemman|
or gavernmantsal agency.

Weeds imporling the singular number ar plural number shall snglude the plural number and singstar
number respactivaly. \Words importing any gender shall inoiude every gender,

References to lows, siahiles of lagislation are toihe s, statoes or legistation for the fime being
In force in New Zealand, unless the conlrary sppesty fram the context of this Desd

GUARANTEE

The Bark hereby unzondiionally guarmniues for the benafit of each Craditor the dus and plmetusl
payment by BoiNZ of each and every Obligation (whaiher 81 stated maturity or upon scoeleration )
now owing of io become owing by BalNZ to the Craditar during ihe tetm of the Guarantee 1o ihe
intent that shoutd BalNZ defaull in the due and puncius! payment of any such Obligetion, the Bank
shall, upon wiitten demand by the misvant Crediler undsr clause 3.2, fathwith PaYy or ciuse 1o be
paid to the Croditor all amounts then due and Uhpaid with resped o such Ciiigation togsthar with
all comts ana expenses incurred by the Crector it enforcing the Guarantes.

The Guarsntes is @ confinuing guaraniee and ghall no!l be congidered . as sstisfed by any
intermediate paymaent and shall remaln in force: untll the terminstion o expiry of {he Guaranies.

Subiject 1o the terms of this Dead, nelthar the labifily of Bank, ner shy of Lhe rights of any Creditor,
under the Guarantes shall be affected or discharged by anylhing which, bul for this clauss, might
operate w affect or discharge the liabilily of, or othensise provide & defence 1o, the Guaranior
iwheibar ar not knowr 1o, or dane or omitted to be done by, the Guarankar),

Notwiinstanding clause 2.2, a Credior may af any dme by an instrument in writing, reisase tha
Bank from it iaolity urdsr the Guarantes in relaon to that Crediior

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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2.5

3

3.z

33

The Bank shall be Fable ordy for pavmen! ol an Obligaticn in tha mannear, to the extent and up o
Ihig gmount ihad BolNZ would ba lisble or permitled fo make paymeni in safisiaciion of sush
Dbligation under appiicabie faws and regulations ana in cetermining and making such paymen!
{ha Bank shall be entitted to deduct the amounte {if any} which the Bank s ealiled in law o in
aquity o set-off or countarciaim against the Credidor 1o whom that Obligation is eweo and the
armourds (I any) which BolNZ coult! hava sal-off or countercalmad In law ar v squity against the
Crecitar to whar sush Obligation 8 owed if BolNZ wene making payment to thal Credidor in llew of
the Bank. Nothing contained in this Dead shall raguce tha Eablity of the Bank wifh respect to any
Qkligation of BolN2 which. s reduced or discharged by reassn of the insolvenay, administmation,
llquidation, fecetvership or rocdganisation of BolNZ

DEMAND AND PAYMENT

A Creditor shall b& entified to make & demend under this Doed if and only £

(8} e Credior has served wiittan demand (@ *Primary Demand”) an BaliZ with proper proof
for the payment of mn Qbligetion which remains unpaid beyand its due dale;

by the Creditor has comphied with the regquirements of BOINZ nouding with regard lo
docurnesttition and sacurity and the Primary Damand remeins urestisfied hH whole o in gart
for m paried of 5 Businass Days after aubmiesion of necesasry Primary Demand.

A damand by a Creditor under (his Deed (a “Croditers Demand”} shall be served on the Bank and
shall be accompaniad oy o statulory deciaration made by the Cradbor on by an Authodsed Offices
of ifie Craditor stating:

(a) the residercy and place of business of the Credilor,
(b}  thal BoilNZ has talled 1o mest an Obligation,

(o)  that @ Primary Demand in respoct of that Oblgation has teen given 1o BaiNZ (sccempanied
by & verified copy of thal Primary Demand] snd that such Primary Oemand has rermained
unsatisfied for & period of 5 Business Days as stated [n 3.1(b):

{(d} et partcwars of the natura of that Obligation (accompanmd by o verfied copy of any
document giving rise to that Obligation):

(e) that the Obligation ranks 21 lesst oarl passy with the claims of unsegured creditors of BalNZ
ganeraily,

(4] lhe oulstanding amount and currency of that Obligation: end
{g}  that thara 2 no bona fide dsoute ralating to that Obligation.

Service of ihe Creditors Demand and aff accampanying dosuments under clause 3.2 on (he Bank
snel consiitule a written demand by the Credifor under clause 2 1

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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4, PAYMENTS

4.1 All payments by the Bank under this Ceed shall be made in the currency ar curmrencles in whizh he
relevant Qbligation s denominabkéed

4.2  Paymants hereunder shell he made free and clear of any deduction of withhektings. 1n the avanl
Ihal the Bark e prohibited &y law from making payments hereunder free of deductions or
withirordings, then the Sank shall pay such additional amount to the meievan| Credito a5 may be
necessary in order that e actual amount recaived sfter all appliceble deductions anz withholdings
shall equal the emount that would have bean received i such deducions er withho.dings were not
required.

. REPRESENTATIONS
5.1 The Bank represents and warrants thal
(&) i & ragisterad bank duly organised and validly axisiing under the lawes of Intia;

() M has the corporate power fo enter inte this Deed and to perform the obligations imposed
spon & under this Deed in sccordance with its lerms: and

(¢ thiz Deed constilutes & valid. binding and enforceatie obligation upon i
& TERMINATION OF GUARANTEE

&1 Mewithetanding anything 5 the commry in this [Deed, the Guarantes shall tarminate automatically
on the fired to occor of e following events.

(a) Inrespest of afl Obiigations if
)  anysubstankal assel of BoINZ, of
(i) any shara in the issued caplts! of BolWZ

ls expropriated or natanaisad by the Govermmenl of hew Zealano or by any pofifics
subdivislan therss! (ihe "Govermnment”) or any enfity succeeding 1o the powers of any such
Govemment or any agensy of any such Government or any such succassar entily or any
suthonty which ls owned or controlled by any such Govemment or any such suscessor snlity
except where such expropriation or nationalisation results from the defall by BalNZ of amy
slatule. regitalian or athier bibding aw, or

(%) = charga [n any law or regulstion In any judsdiction which renders the Guarantes legal or
Inapemtive in New Zealana ar

e} BOINZ cessing o be & whobly owned subaidiary of the Bank.

6.2 Immadiataly afier the Bank becomaes swart of tha termine an of the Susranies pursuand in cluues
6.1, the Bank shall ngtify BolNZ themof and give nolice of such tarminetion oy an adverdisemesnt =
B newspaper circulating generally throughout Mew Fealand

.,.,mm..g:——:- CA,,,;” W
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B2

8.1

SUBROGATION

The Bank and BolNZ mxprassly agree that the Bank s and shall be entitied to all the rights ana
remedies of & guarantor undar law incleding, without imiting the generality of the faregaing, abl
rights of subrogation which shiall scciue 1o the Bank by viltea of any payment hereunder by the
Bank to or for e benefit of any Creditor and, subject to the law, the Bank shall be aniitfed (o cliim
the beneflf of and participals in any secueily now or herealler heid by fthat Creditor from Balkiz
aither in whobe or upon @ pro-rata basis, as the case may be, whera the Bank Has paid 2/l moneys
to oF for the beneft of that Cradiler under {his Deed.  Notwihstanding the generaliy of the
foregoing, the Bank shill not exercise of seek to enforce 2ny clsim against BoldzZ [whelher o not
Ir Tliquidation) for reimbursement 1o the Bank of any moneys cald pursuant to this Deed by the Bank
to-a Creditor in regpect of an Obligatan unli the defaull of BolNZ in mespect of that Obligation has
been fully remediad by SolNZ or the Bank,

DEALINGS BETWEEN THE BANK AND THE CREDITORS

After receipt of 8 written demand from a Creditor undar clause 3.2 the Bank and thet Craditor shall
dual with ane another ae principal In. relatien {0 all matlers under ar in relation Yo This Desd, the
Guarantes and BolNZ

Withoul limiting the genaralily of clause 5, the Bark shall be and is sntitled 1o serve any notice,
demands or statements in connection wth (hls Oeed upon that Greditor [at its plece of business
spacifiad in the Creditor's Demand) and the Bank shall be snd is entitied to make any payment
wiich 118 Rable to pay 1o the Creditor undar this Deed directy fo thei Crediter and not through any
othar Person

MOTICES
Any nerice to the Creditors generaly in respect of this Deed will be valldly given if published in &
newspaper circulafing generslly throughout New Zealsnd. Any such notice shall be deemad 1o

have been given en ihe date of publication or, it published more than ence, on the date of first
publicatan.

Z 4y e

L SOCRH e Fage 5
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8.2  Any nolice, demand, stutement of other document reguited 1o be served oe or celivered o the
Henk or BolNZ under or in relatian o this Deed (*Notles”) slisll be in wriling signed by he party
@iving ine Notice of by an Aulhonsed Cticer of that party, sha'l be mada, served or aivan (subjeot
in hi case of the Bank (o cause 11.2) by being ieft 2t or sent by prepaid mall o by fscsimile as
foliows:

Lo the: Bank:
Bank of lndia

Intarnafional Divisien

3™ Figor, East Wing

Etar House

=5, 5 Hlock

Bandra - ¥urla Complex

Bandrs (Eaal)

Mumbal = 400 051

india

Altention:  The Genaral Manager, imematenal Dndslon

fo BoiNg
BOH (New Zealand) Limitad

Lavel 18, PricewalerholseCaopern Tawer

1B Quay Strest, Auckiand

Mew Zealard

Attention Managing Disector

o to such cthet address or facsimile number as shiall have been notified (in accordsnes with this
clausa] 1o the other pery herelo. No Netioe shall be deemed to have been recéives by o Bank or
SaINZ untll actually received by the relevant perly lo whom |l is addressed atl lis demignated
address

10.  AMENDMENT

10.1 The Bank may, fram time o time and withou! sny anofty of assent of BaiNg o the Cred tors,
alter, modfy, or add o lhis Deed U in lhe masanable opinien of the Bank

(a) the aderalion, madificafion or addition is rmada 1o comect 8 manifest armor or s of & formal or
technical natura;

{b) the medification, aiterstion or addities |5 necessary to comply with the provisions of any statute,
whether or nol reguired by any slafidary autsorily: o

N

terer A AT e
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» (e} the allerstion, modification or addiion |z desirabie for the purpose sf more edvantageously
administering iha rights and chilgalians matablished urdsr this Deed,

and in'any case such modification, alterabon or addbion & considerad by the Bank, acling in good
faith. not o be materially pseudicial to the Credifors 85 whole, so far 9 Krown 19 1L

11  GOVERNING LAW

111 This Deed shail be govemed by and conatrued in accordance with the aws for the time being in
force in Naw Zealand, The Bank and BelNZ eacn haraby submit, for the purposes of this Dead, 1o
the non-exclusive furisdiction of thie Ceurte of New Zealand in respect of ol legal adtions assing
under ar in relehon to this Deed.

17.2 The Bank hereby rrevocably appaints BolNZ (and BalNZ heteby accepts such appaintment) to be
the agent of the: Bank ta sscept service of process on behall of ihe Bark th respest of &l mattars In
Mew Zeslond arfaing undes or in relation o this D=ed and the Sonk sgress hat any such process
shall ba properly served upoa the Bank If defivered (0 BolMZ of /ts address for the senvica of
Matices set out in clause 8.2

1L  ASSIGNMENT

129 Mo party 16 this Deed may assign i1s nghis or obligations hereunder without the cansent in writing
af the other pany.

13. CERTIFICATE

13,1 BolMZ shall advise the Bank in wiiling within fourdean (14) days of & reguest In writing from the
Bank (made no mere frequently then quarterdy or following recemt by &t of 8 Credior's Demand) 1o
do so, of 5 best estmata of the aggregate prncipal amount of the Obligalions for which |1 e
Indebtad as at such dete fo either all of the Crédiors generally or to those Crediors specified oy
fhe Bank in Its request,

EXECUTED as a Daesd

b
EXECUTED as a DEED for and an buhal —
of BANK OF INDIA ) —

[ 5 AL [ V. ARTHANARI )
Genaral Managar Chiel Manugur
Irtemational Imermational Division

EXECUTED as a DEED for and on behaf
of 8O (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED ! W
} / %‘?‘"“’W
(B.A PRASHAKAR |

Pl RA0

AL ADCE Paga 7
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